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(2) additional attendees

PRESS: Akaku: Maui Community Television, Inc.

CHAIR SUGIMURA: .. .[(gavel)... Good morning, everyone. Welcome to the Policy,
Economic Development, and Agriculture Committee. Today is July 23, It is now
9:02 am. I am your Council...I'm your Committee Chair Yuki Lei Sugimura. Please
silence all your cell phone and noise-making devices at this time. At this time, thank
you very much for being here, my Committee Vice-Chair Stacy Crivello from Molokai.

VICE-CHAIR CRIVELLO: Aloha and good morning, Chair.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Aloha. Bob Carroll.

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Good morning, Chair.

CHAIR SUGIMURA: Good morning. Good morning. Alika Atay.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Good morning, Chair.

CHAIR SUGIMURA: Good morning. And Kelly King. Who is excused today is Don Guzman,
Mr. White, Elle Cochran is on her way, and Riki Hokama will be joining us. So, that,
that is the Committee. From the Administration, thank you very much, Mike Molina,
for being here.

MR. MOLINA: Good morning, Madam Chair.

CHAIR SUGIMURA: Executive assistant--good morning--to the Mayor. For item number
PEA-84 we have Will Spence who will be joining us, Acting Director of Housing and
Human Concerns. Also for that same item, we have Michele McLean, Acting Planning
Director and also Dave Underwood, Director of Personnel Services will be joining us for
that item. For PEA-79, which is the Constitutional amendment, we have Mark Walker
who will be joining us, Scott Teruya, Real Property Tax Administrator, as from the
Department...all from the Department of Finance. Corporation Counsel, joining us is
Ed Kushi, Junior, First Deputy Corporation Counsel. Thank you, Mr. Hokama, for
being here, and, Mr. White, for joining us. Good morning. From our Staff, we have
Legislative Analyst Shelly Espeleta, Committee Secretary Clarita Balala, and Hana
Office Dawn Lono, Lanai District Office Denise Fernandez, Molokai District Office is
Ella Alcon. The items today that were gonna be taking up is PEA-2(33), Nominations
to Boards, Committees, and Commissions for the Police Commission. Bobbie Patnode,
who is in the audience. PEA-2(45), Nominations to Boards, Committees, and
Commissions, Maui County Cultural Resources Commission, which is a nominee from
our Molokai Councilmember Stacy Crivello. PEA-84, Confirmation of Directors of
Housing and Human Concerns and Planning Director. PEA-79, Proposed
Constitutional Amendment to Allow a Surcharge of Real Property Taxes to Fund Public
Education. Thank you everyone for being here. First on today’s agenda are two
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time-sensitive matters, which is two nominations to boards and commissions. And
also, for the confirmation of two new directors. For the last item on the agenda,
PEA-79, we will intend to receive a presentation from the Department of Finance and
discuss the matter following the presentation and discussion. The Chair intends to
recommend this communication to be referred to Budget and Finance Committee and
this will enable the Budget and Finance Committee to consider the proviso for $50,000
appropriated in the Council Services Program from Fiscal Year 2019 Budget for public
education on real property tax. With that, let’s start our meeting. Do we have any
testifiers in the District Offices? No? Okay, so we only have one testifier in our
Council, which is Zandra Amaral Crouse, testifying on PEA-19 [sic]. Ms. Crouse,
please.

. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. . .

MS. AMARAL CROUSE: Aloha, Committee Chair and Members. 1 am Zandra Amaral Crouse
and I'm testifying on PEA-19 [sic], Constitutional amendment to allow a surcharge on
real property tax to fund public education. We all know that education is paramount
in giving our children the tools they need today so they may be prepared to lead our
State tomorrow. My concern, however, is will these funds be earmarked for education
which goes to the very soul of our teachers and our students while increasing the cost
of housing? The property tax school funding dilemma. Property taxation and school
funding are closely linked in the United States with nearly half of all property tax
being used for public education. There is an active policy debate across the country
regarding the degree to which public schools should be funded with property taxes.
Some policymakers and analysis call for a reduced reliance on property
revenue...property tax revenue and increased reliance on State funding. Others claim
that the property tax is a crucial ingredient in effective local government. School
funding is no less controversial and nearly every state has dealt with school funding
litigation and court mandates, at least once over the last two decades. States
experiencing taxpayer revolts among homeowners are tempted to reduce reliance on
property tax to fund schools. But a more targeted approach can provide property tax
relief and also improve State funding for public education according to Daphne A.
Kenyon at the Lincoln Institute. I lost my place. Sorry, guys. The report
includes...thank you...the report includes a comprehensive review of recent research
on both the property tax and school funding and summarizes cases of seven states
that majority of them heavily are reliant on property tax for revenues to school
funding. One objective of the report is to provide information helpful to State
policymakers and others who are graveling with the twin challenges of court mandates
regarding school funding and constituent pressure to lower property taxes. Another
objective is to correct some common misconceptions through a critical analysis and
nine myths regarding school funding litigation, property tax characteristics, and the
State role in funding education. While there is no one size fits all, the report says, the
report recommends addressing property tax and school funding separately. Property
tax relief, they say, they argue that the use of property tax revenue for schools is
fundamentally sound. The report reports out that...I'm sorry.
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CHAIR SUGIMURA: Could you close up with a closing remark?

MS. AMARAL CROUSE: Sure. Basically the report says for us to look at school funding and
property taxation for funding schools be looked at separately. And they stipulate also,
on the school side, with the State taking up the responsibility of funding schools,
should look at the least unfortunate schools, distressed students, and districts. And
this, in closing, according to Dr. Saas, the Deputy Director of the New England
Policy...Public Policy Center, a research group established by the Boston Federal
Reserve Bank says the report’s most important contribution is its exposure and
discussion of the common misconceptions regarding school funding and property
taxes.

CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you.

MS. AMARAL CROUSE: Public policies are too often --

CHAIR SUGIMURA: Ms. Amaral...

MS. AMARAL CROUSE: --developed based on incomplete analysis and unchallenged
assertions, he says. In conclusion, there is a real need for objective research like
Dr. Kenyon’s that can shine a bright light on assumptions and support the
development --

CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you.

MS. AMARAL CROUSE: --of sound public policy.

CHAIR SUGIMURA: We’re at five minutes.

MS. AMARAL CROUSE: Mahalo.

CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you.

MS. AMARAL CROUSE: You’re welcome.

CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you.

MS. AMARAL CROUSE: Thank you.

CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you. Anyone have questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you very much.

COUNCILMEMBER KING: Chair? Chair?

CHAIR SUGIMURA: Yes?
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COUNCILMEMBER KING: I just have a clarifying question of yourself. When you introduced
her, when she introduced her item, she said PEA-19, but it’s in our materials as 79.

CHAIR SUGIMURA: I'm sorry. I made a mistake.

COUNCILMEMBER KING: It’s supposed to be 79 or 19?

CHAIR SUGIMURA: She is testifying on the last item, yes. We don’t have a...
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Seventy-nine.

MS. AMARAL CROUSE: That was absolutely correct. Thank you.

CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you.

COUNCILMEMBER KING: Thank you.

CHAIR SUGIMURA: That was my mistake. Sorry.

COUNCILMEMBER KING: That’s okay. I just wanted to clarify.

CHAIR SUGIMURA: Anyone...we have next testifier is Lawrence Carnicelli for also on
PEA-79.

MR. CARNICELLIL: Good morning, Chair, Members. Lawrence Carnicelli speaking on behalf
of the REALTORS® Association of Maui on PEA-79. And as you guys know, there is a
question that’s going to be on November’s ballot which is shall the State Legislature be
authorized to establish, as provided by law, a surcharge on investment real property to
be used to support public education. As you guys also know, currently the Maui
County generates 77 percent of its income from real property taxes. So, this ballot
initiative is not just another simple property tax hike. Should this Constitutional
amendment pass, the State Legislature would be able to create new rules and new
higher taxes whenever they want. So, couple of questions, will this tax surcharge
increase the DOE’s budget? No. There is no provision in here that says it will actually
increase the budget. And Corey Rosenlee, who is the president of the Hawaii State
Teacher’s Association, when he was asked that when many of you were present, said
it’s my deepest, darkest fear. Can we guarantee that this increase will go to the school
level or to teachers? He again responded, we can’t. How much will rents go up as a
result of this tax surcharge? Well, there is no limit to the amount that rents can go up
and it can be reassessed each and every year. Does this tax surcharge increase only
apply to properties over $1 million? Nope. There’s nothing in here that says
$1 million. What is investment real property? Well, the IRS defines it as any property
with the intention of earning a return on investment. So, that could basically be any
and all tax classifications. How much additional tax is the State looking to collect?
Currently, the DOE’s budget is $2 billion, which is 20 percent of our budget and
Mr. Rosenlee said we can raise over $500 million each year. So, that’s what they’re
looking to collect. Does this tax surcharge increase only apply to out-of-state owners?

-5-



POLICY, ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, AND AGRICULTURE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

July 23, 2018

Nope. Nothing in there about out-of-state owners. How will this tax surcharge
increase affect the counties? Well, first off it’s going to erode the tax base; obviously,
77 percent. And it’s going to negatively affect the bond rating which, as you guys
know, credit is how we pay for things so everything becomes more expensive. So, how
does this affect me and my local economy? As we said, things like parks,
infrastructure, stuff like that, we leverage so all of those things are gonna be more
costly and then therefore the County’s gonna have to increase taxes and fees in other
areas. 5o, basically everything’s gonna cost more. So, in closing, Chair, I'm just
gonna say, you know, we really support the funding for education, we’re deeply
concerned about how this additional property tax investment...how this additional
property tax will affect affordability. Hawaii ranks last in the country in closing the
affordable rental wage gap and given Hawaii’s affordable housing and homeless crisis,
our community needs to work together on solutions that help reduce the cost of
housing and not increase the cost of housing. So, thank you, Chair.

CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you. Anyone have questions for Mr. Carnicelli? Mr. Hokama?

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Chair. I'm assuming you’re reading something off
your list there so I’'m asking if you can make that presentable to Committee ‘cause...

MR. CARNICELLI: I did submit in writing,.

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Great.

MR. CARNICELLI: I didn’t read it verbatim, but I read from it.

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Great.

MR. CARNICELLI: But, yeah, I did submit written testimony.

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: ‘Cause I think you are hitting lot of the marks that people like
me would agree with in your statements. Chair, so I appreciate his background, but I
don’t know if he’s gonna be here ‘cause I would like to get at least some private sector
comments about this property tax when we do actually take it up.

CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you. Mr. Carnicelli, would you be here --

MR. CARNICELLI: Sure.

CHAIR SUGIMURA: --for the...it’s gonna be the last item taken up on our agenda. Thank
you.

MR. CARNICELLI: Yeah. I can be available if you need to, Chair, sure.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Okay.

MR. CARNICELLI: Sure.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you.,

CHAIR SUGIMURA: Okay. Yes. And thank you for summarizing the HSAC Conference that
we went to. The presentation and, yeah, that was what was said. So, thank you.

MR. CARNICELLI: Sure.

CHAIR SUGIMURA: Anyone else? No? Okay. Thank you. Are there any other testifiers in
the gallery? Seeing none, at this time, Members, I'd like to close public testimony.

COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you. Testimony is...public testimony is now closed.

. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. . .

PEA-2(33): NOMINATIONS TO BOARDS, COMMITTEES, AND
COMMISSIONS (POLICE COMMISSION) (CC 17-7)

CHAIR SUGIMURA: I would like to now take up our first item on our agenda which is the
Nominations to Boards, Committees, and Commissions (Police Commission),
PEA-2(33). This is relating to the appointment of Roberta Patnode to the Police
Commission, along with completed application form for the nominee. The purpose of
the proposed resolution is to approve or disapprove the nomination of Roberta Patnode
to the Police Commission for a term expiring March 31, 2022 and to fill a vacancy due
to the resignation of Max Tsai. At this time, Members...Mr. Molina, do you have any
comments?

MR. MOLINA: Yes, thank you very much, Madam Chair and Committee Members. The
Administration would like you to consider the nomination of Ms. Roberta Patnode for
the Police Commission. Ms. Patnode recently completed her tenure on the Cost of
Government Commission at the end of March this year. She is the general partner for
the Patnode Family Farm and certainly she has quite an impressive resume. And as
far as availability to attend the once-a-month Police Commission meetings, she has
told us she would, she’s very flexible and would be certainly available to attend those
meetings. So, with that being said, the Administration would like to ask again for
your kind consideration. And I believe Ms. Patnode is in the gallery as well. She can
as well respond to questions should you have any. Thank you.

CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you, Mr. Molina. Committee has passed out the Police
Commission nine-member spreadsheet so you can see who’s on it currently and the
districts that they live as well as the expiration dates. Members, do you have any
questions regarding this? I...yes, Ms. King?
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COUNCILMEMBER KING: I guess the only question I have for Ms. Patnode is are you still
gonna continue to shepherd the Agriculture Working Group ‘cause she’s doing such a
good job at that, so?

CHAIR SUGIMURA: So I guess, would you like to come up here and answer that question,
Ms. Patnode?

MS. PATNODE: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Good morning.

MS. PATNODE: Good morning, Councilmembers. Yes, I've been with the Ag Working Group
for the last five years and I'm also, have been on the board of the Kula Community
Association for the last ten years and I expect to continue both those positions.

COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay. Thank you. I really appreciate your leadership on that
organization.

MS. PATNODE: Thank you.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you. Any other questions? Mr. Hokama?

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: First, [ appreciate your willingness to take on more
non-paying work for community benefit. So, thank you for doing that.

MS. PATNODE: Thank you.

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Second, were they clear in the responsibilities because, you
know, as Councilors we’re not in a little bubble, you know, we get to know what’s
going on in the rest of the world. So, we know that this Commission has had issues
as Members of the Council and people like me don’t appreciate that type of issues.
Have they been clear with you about expectations of and responsibilities of a Police
Commissioner, Ms. Patnode?

MS PATNODE: I know what I was told by the Administration and I know what I have read in
the, as far as the rules of the Commission and I have read the minutes of the
Commission. So, that’s the information that I have, Mr. Hokama. If there’s more you
want to tell me, I'd be happy to hear it.

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Are you going to receive a badge?

MS PATNODE: Yes, I've heard I get a badge.

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: What is the purpose of the badge?
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MS. PATNODE: I would expect that the purpose of the badge is to identify myself as a
Commissioner and responsible for assisting the Police Department in any way I can. I
don’t know if there’s more to it than that, Mr. Hokama.

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well, if there is, this Council is gonna bring it out in the open
about departmental procedures and certain potential benefits, if there are any,
regarding this badge, Chair.

CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you.

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: But this not about the general subject, I just want to be sure
that the nominee’s been informed of the responsibilities and it carries...you have a
sense, a civic burden because there’s expectations of a police commissioner. Okay.
Also, including the hiring, evaluating, and termination of the Chief.

MS. PATNODE: So, that’s my understanding is that the Commission is there to hire the
Chief, should we need a new Chief, and I hope we don’t, to do the evaluation for the
Chief’s performance, to recommend the budget and look at the budget for the Police
Department.

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you for mentioning that. I know you read the --

MS. PATNODE: Yeah.

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --points of responsibility.

MS. PATNODE: So, I think that’s very important. And also, to listen to complaints about the
Department. So, I know those are the responsibilities of the Commission.

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you.

CHAIR SUGIMURA: Anyone else have any more questions for her? Seeing none, okay, thank
you.

MS. PATNODE: Okay.

CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you very much. Yes, you do a good job with the Ag Working
Group. So, appreciate. And she’s at the Upcountry Farmer’s Market at her family
booth on Saturdays. Thank you very much. So, Members, at this time, I'm, with no
further discussions, I would like to recommend adoption of the proposed resolution
entitled relating to the appointment of Roberta Patnode to the Police Commission.

VICE-CHAIR CRIVELLO: So moved, Chair.
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CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you.

COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Second.

CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you. Motion by Member Crivello, second by Member White to
recommend adoption of the proposed resolution. Any discussion? Seeing none, at
this time, all in favor say “aye.”

COUNCILMEMBERS: Aye.

CHAIR SUGIMURA: That’s seven “ayes” and two excused, Elle Cochran and Mr. Guzman.
So, the motion passes.

VOTE: AYES: Chair Sugimura, Vice-Chair Crivello, and
Councilmembers Atay, Carroll, Hokama, King, and
White.

NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmembers Cochran and Guzman.
MOTION CARRIED.

ACTION: Recommending ADOPTION of resolution approving
the nomination of Roberta Patnode to the Police
Commission.

CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you very much, Ms. Patnode, for being here. Appreciate that very
much.

PEA-2(45): NOMINATIONS TO BOARDS, COMMITTEES, AND
COMMISSIONS (MAUI COUNTY CULTURAL RESOURCES
COMMISSION) (CC 17-7)

CHAIR SUGIMURA: Our next item that we’re gonna be taking up is...oops, sorry. We're
taking up Nominations to Boards, Committees, and Commissions (Maui County
Cultural Resources Commission), PEA-2(45), and this resolution is for the
appointment of Louella Albino to the Maui County Cultural Resources Commission.
This nominee came to us from Councilmember Stacy Crivello. So, I'll ask her to say a
few words at the appropriate time. Members, per Chapter, Section 13-217, because
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the Mayor did not submit the name of a nominee by the Charter established deadline
of June 17,2018, the Council, within 60 days, can nominate and approve the
appointment of an individual to fill the vacancy. Pursuant to Section 2.88.030, Maui
County Code, the Maui County Cultural Resources Commission shall include
members from different areas of the County with at least one representative from each
island who possess a knowledge and interest in local area history. The vacancy was
created by the resignation of Cheney-Ann Lima, a resident of Molokai. Ms. Lima was
the only member of the board for Molokai, therefore the vacancy shall be filled with an
individual from Molokai. Vice-Chair Crivello, as a member of the...as introducing the
nomination, do you want to say a few opening comments regarding your nominee?

VICE-CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you, Chair. And it’s Louella Albino.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Albino.

VICE-CHAIR CRIVELLO: And she is a kamaaina of the island of Molokai. And, you know,
Pulama, or who we call Cheney-Ann Lima, unfortunately could not continue her
serving of time. She came with lots of qualifications also. As a young mother [ guess
it gets difficult at times to make the meetings, as well as an educator. So, Louella, or
who we call Opuulani, actually is retired from teaching at the Kula Kaiapuni o
Kualapuu Conversion Charter School. And she brings with her lots of cultural
knowledge I think that would benefit all of Maui County. When you’re gonna have the
conversation on anything that’s culturally-sensitive, she brings the natural experience
and the knowledge of the culture. So, I ask our Members to support this appointment
and, you know, after raising her children, she even went back to school to get her
degree in education. So, she brings plenty to the table that would benefit our Culture
Resource Commission.

CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you. Anyone have any questions for Ms. Crivello? All of you got
in Granicus her application submitted by Ms. Crivello on July 17, ’18 and you will see
that she is highly educated and qualified. Thank you very much for that summary.
Members, at this time, anyone else have any questions for Ms. Crivello regarding the
applicant? If there’s no further discussion, Members, I would like to entertain a
motion to recommend adoption of the proposed resolution entitled Relating to the
Appointment of Louella Albino to the Maui County Cultural Resources Commission.

VICE-CHAIR CRIVELLO: So moved.

CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you.

COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Second.

CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you. Motion by Member Crivello, second by Member White to
recommend adoption of the proposed resolution. Any discussion? Seeing none, all in

favor say “aye.”

COUNCILMEMBERS: Aye.
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CHAIR SUGIMURA: Seven “ayes,” two excused, and motion carried. This passes.

VOTE: AYES: Chair Sugimura, Vice-Chair Crivello, and
Councilmembers Atay, Carroll, Hokama, King, and
White.

NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmembers Cochran and Guzman.
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending ADOPTION of resolution approving

the nomination of Louella Albino to the Maui County
Cultural Resources Commission.

CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you very much, Ms. Crivello, for that nominee.

PEA-84: CONFIRMATION OF DIRECTOR OF HOUSING AND HUMAN

CONCERNS AND PLANNING DIRECTOR (CC 18-255)

CHAIR SUGIMURA: Moving right along here. The next item is, on the agenda is

confirmation of directors for Housing and Human Concerns, as well as the Planning
Director which is PEA-84. We have both Michele McLean as well as Will Spence in the
audience. At this time, I’d like to ask if Mr. Spence would like to join us here. This
item is approving the appointment of William Spence as the Director of the
Department of Housing and Human Concerns. Thank you, Mr. Spence, for being
here. And the purpose of the proposed resolution is to approve the appointment of
Mr. Spence as the Director of Housing and Human Concerns pursuant to Section 6-25
and 8-10.2 of the revised Charter of the County of Maui (1983), as amended. And the
second item we'll take up is Ms. McLean. So, Mr. Spence, would you like to say a few
words?

MR. SPENCE: Yes. Good morning, Madam Chair. Good morning, Members. Thank you for

this opportunity to speak before you this morning. When the Mayor...when my
predecessor resigned and the Mayor saw a puka that needed to be filled and asked me
to fill this position, I was very excited about it. I, as a Planner, you know, and Il
never quite take off that hat, I was very excited with the opportunity to see affordable
housing done, to see some of our services continue and expand. The...as a Planner, I
always have been about our communities and seeing, trying to do something good for
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them. A big portion of that is, of course, housing. And so, through my years as
Planning Director, I've always have supported housing projects because I know we
lack inventory. Particularly I've supported affordable housing projects whether it be
before the Land Use Committee or full Council or in front of the Land Use
Commission, the...when I see opportunities for our residents to gain additional
housing, ‘cause I know things are very tight, I enthusiastically supported them. And
so now this gives me an opportunity in just a different capacity to do that same thing.
I would, I also would say [ used to think I knew what Housing and Human Concerns
did until I got the tour and we went to Office on Aging and Kaunoa and Early
Childhood Services, et cetera, and I'm quite amazed at this office and how much more
it does than what my impressions were. The...I'm very glad to hear and witness what
an enthusiastic group of people toward...there are in all these different offices towards
bettering our citizens and providing services for those people who need that help
towards aiding non-profits in their particular missions. It’s been quite exciting and
I'm looking forward to doing that some more. And, Madam Chair, I'm open to
questions by yourself or any of the Members.

CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you. I see Mr. Underwood in the audience. Could you join us
also for this discussion? Members, anyone have any questions for Mr. Spence?
Ms. Crivello?

VICE-CHAIR CRIVELLO: Good morning. Thank you for being here. You know, there’s no
question we have a housing crisis and we just talk about Maui. What are your
thoughts on the needs of housing for our residents also in the outlying districts of
Hana, Molokai, and Lanai as well? Do you have any thoughts on, we also addressing
needs on our islands other than Maui?

MR. SPENCE: Okay. Thank you for that question. The, I know we have a pending
affordable housing project on Lanai. It seems there are going to be some changes in
the plans on how to accomplish that; mostly it’s been about funding and
infrastructure. I think and I believe we’re going to be discussing that shortly and I'll
be speaking with Mr. Hokama about that; mostly it’s securing the funding for the
infrastructure that, you know, that will probably take some action by the Council
towards doing that and refiguring how to make it affordable for the County to go
forward with this project. I know Lanai is tremendously overburdened; multiple
families living in and multiple generations living within homes. So, we need to help
with that. Hana, I've been long aware since the...since before the last community plan
was adopted there is a large need for affordable housing in Hana. Again, and I've
spoken with the district representative about this; again multiple families...not
even...sometimes generational, sometimes just multiple families living within homes.
And I know there’s some pending projects and things we can do in Hana. Molokai, I
know that there has been some discussion of projects in Kaunakakai. My experience
with Molokai has been one of the large issues has been the Interim zoning which that’s
not something that I would take on in this particular position, but that has hindered
families from being able to subdivide and provide for their own.

VICE-CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you. I have more questions, but I'll let it go further.

-13 -



POLICY, ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, AND AGRICULTURE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

July 23, 2018

CHAIR SUGIMURA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Chair?
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Anyone else? Ms. King?

COUNCILMEMBER KING: Thank you, Chair. Thanks for being here, Mr. Spence. And I did
hear some very enthusiastic comments after the last Housing Committee meeting from
the Housing folks about your position so I want to share that with you. But, you
know, we all know that affordable housing is probably our number one issue in this
County right now. And so my question to you is what do you think are the top most
urgent actions that need to be taken to address this issue and also will you be still
monitoring or working with Planning on the illegal short-term rental issue that, I mean
the bottom line goal of that is to get more affordable rentals on, you know, use that as
identifying the low-hanging fruit? So, if you could share your thoughts on that that
would be great.

MR. SPENCE: Okay. Okay. Thank you. I've thought about this quite a bit and since,
particularly since being in this position looking forward to what are the things we
could do in a relatively short amount of time. I think one of the things is to prioritize
permitting and when I say that I'm referring to a directive that the Mayor issued back
in April, towards the end of April, that the different departments who were involved in
permitting put projects, affordable housing projects, at the top of the list. So,
normally when a project would come in, say a subdivision or building permits, they,
there’s an initial review of a project and then, you know, the departments will red-line
it and say we need more information about this or that. The...we wait for that
information to come in and then it...regular permitting processes, they may or may not
address that additional information right away. That permit may sit while other
projects are, that have subsequently come in, are dealt with and reviewed. What this
directive will do is put affordable housing projects at the top of everybody’s desk and
keep them there until the permits are issued. It doesn’t excuse the information that’s
required or County standards or anything, but instead of waiting on somebody’s desk,
they remain at the top of desk. So, this is a pretty...we only now...the directive was
issued in April. We've only now started doing it. So, the Catholic Charities, Kahului
Lani, that we just issued our first certificate for that. So those the project coordinator
on the private side is going to go around and take these bright, vibrant pink
certificates around to the different departments and enclose them with the permit
applications so it’s very obvious that this is an affordable housing project, permits for
affordable housing. So, the idea, of course, with that is time is money, let’s get
something done, and it will always be at the top of everybody’s pile. We’re also gonna
do the same with Kaiwahine and other projects. It will also apply to SMA permits,
changes in zoning, subdivisions, grading permits, work-to-perform permits, all of
those. So, the idea is to expedite and make these things go faster.

COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay. So, you feel like you’'ll be working closely with the Planning
Department on this?
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MR. SPENCE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: In a good position to do that, I suppose.

MR. SPENCE: Well, I certainly will work with the Department where it’s necessary. We’re
gonna...it’s gonna be the developer’s responsibility to take these certificates and
distribute them or, I mean, because these particular projects are already underway, at
least the permitting for them. And then with new permits, when those...before a
developer even submits for building permits we’ll be issuing these certificates for them
so they will go right along with the initial submittal. So, we’re hopeful that this is
going to do really good things for our permitting.

COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay.

MR. SPENCE: Yes, I, I'm always happy to work with Planning Department or any other
department.

COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay. And then are you going to still track the contract that we
funded last year for identifying illegal short-term rentals?

MR. SPENCE: I will be...it will no longer be my kuleana for that, to work with that, but I will
be very interested in knowing how that’s working with the Planning Department.
When notices of warning go out to the several thousand suspected illegal rentals, I'll
be very interested to hear the results. And if we can collaborate on the results, you
know, if people start shutting down their rentals and their vacation rentals and start
going long-term, we will be there to aid in any way that we can.

COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay. Alright. Thank you, Chair.

CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you. Mr. Hokama? Oh, I'd like to also welcome Ms. Cochran to
the meeting. Thank you very much.

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair.

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you for being here, Mr. Spence. I'm happy
Mr. Underwood is also here. So, requirements is the Mayor submits a name, we have
60 days to make a decision. If it’s no, he has another 60 days to transmit another
name, then we have 60 days to reconsider that. But there is no prohibition of sending
down the same name that gets denied, correct?

CHAIR SUGIMURA: Mr. Underwood?

MR. UNDERWOOD: Chair? Mr. Hokama, that’s my understanding. The Charter’s silent on
that.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And that would be still the Mayor’s prerogative as the person
who recommends the nominee. So, I know Council went through this, at least with
the same person three times, I think for Corporation Counsel in a term. So, my
question first, Chair, is in general. With four, basically four months left in the term of
this Administration, how critical is it for us to confirm a new director versus allowing
interim directors until the end of the term, which is December? How much can a
Director in four months implement what they tell us this morning by December? Is
there gonna be budgetary adjustments? Is there gonna be program reshuffling? Is
there gonna be revisions in rules or ordinance? It’s not gonna happen in four months,
Chair. So, let’s be real what we expect these people to be able to perform in four
months. And that’s why I thought the question of his low-hanging fruit was pretty
appropriate for Mr. Spence. But that’s where I am at this point, Chair. I don’t know
whether it’s worth, well for me, to consider confirmation or allow just interim to
continue to end of term. And so, [ would ask, Mr. Underwood, you, the, our Personnel
person, you see any advantages/disadvantages from your perspective as the Chief of
Personnel Services to this Committee this morning? Do you have any comments you
wish to share with us?

CHAIR SUGIMURA: Mr. Underwood?

MR. UNDERWOOD: 1 think, you know, the effect would be the same. The acting director
acts with all the authority of a confirmed director. I'm not sure if there might be some
protocol issues or other...dealing with other agencies if not having that acting director
in front of the name might make them more attentive possibly. That might be one
thing that could be an effective...having acting in front of that particular title. But I
think authority-wise it’s identical.

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Just so we get that part clear, there could be a
technical or a strategic advantage to keeping the person in active or interim versus the
full-appointed position?

CHAIR SUGIMURA: Mr. Underwood?

MR. UNDERWOOD: Chair? I think the advantage might be if they were confirmed. And so,
if youre dealing with another agency or another organization, maybe another
jurisdiction, and it’s not acting director, perhaps they might give it more credence, I'm
not sure. That’s just a supposition on my part. But...

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No, I appreciate that perspective, Mr. Underwood. I don’t
know if I want a short-term in making a long-term commitment on behalf of the
County, though. That would be my only druthers on that, Chair. Chair, I have other
questions specific for Mr. Spence, but I appreciate this opportunity in this round.

CHAIR SUGIMURA: Okay. Thank you. Ms. Cochran?

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. Thank you, Mr. Hokama, for bringing
that perspective. [ completely concur and agree with you at this point. And,
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